
FAIRA Board and Executive Board Meeting Minutes – September 14, 2020 

FAIRA BOARD & EXECUTIVE 
BOARD MEETING  

March 15, 2021 



March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 2 of 79 

FAIRA Key Contacts 
 
 

Contact Name Office # Alternate / Cell 
# 

E-Mail 
 
 

Susan Blankenburg (FAIRA) 415-536-4005 415-517-8028 susan_blankenburg@faira.org 

Alex Banks (FAIRA) 415-536-5005 415-536-4004 alex_banks@faira.org 

Jim Smith (Gallagher) 714-230-6928  Jim_smith1@ajg.com 

Mike Sims (Bonita Sunnyside FPD) 619-479-2346 619-540-8303 msims@bonitafd.org 

Eric Walder (South Placer FPD) 916-791-8464 
 

ewalder@southplacerfire.org 

Reno DiTullio Jr (Aromas Tri-County 
FPD) 

831-333-4600 831-227-7607 Reno.DiTullioJr@fire.ca.gov 

Criss Brainard (San Miguel FPD) 619-670-0500 619-279-4471 cbrainard@sanmiguelfire.org 
 

Scott Draper (Mason Valley FPD) 775-463-2261 775-750-4398 sdraper@lyon-county.org 

Mark A. Johnson (Fresno County FPD) 559-493-4355 559-281-4300 mark.a.johnson@fire.ca.gov 

Don Butz (Lakeside FPD) 619-390-2350 
 

dbutz@lakesidefire.com 

Brian Boggeln (Alpine FPD) 619-445-2635 619-203-0050 bboggeln@alpinefire.org 

Richard Pearce (Tiburon FPD) 415-435-7208 
 

415-328-1323 rpearce@tiburonfire.org 

Sean Bailey (Northstar CSD)                      530-562-1212 
x3 

530-414-8857 sbailey@northstarcsd.org 

Mark Pomi (Kentfield FPD) 415-453-7464 707-695-4749 mpomi@kentfieldfire.org 

Rhonda Haynes (Orange County FA) 714-573-6833 714-309-5975 rhondahaynes@ocfa.org 

Howard Wood (Vacaville FPD) 707-447-2252 707-480-7017 howard.wood@vfpd.net 

Dale Bacigalupi (FAIRA Counsel) 559-431-5600 559-246-8639 dbacigalupi@lozanosmith.com 

John Paget (FAIRA Accountant) 760-518-7186 760-518-7186 cpa4flight@aol.com 

Joe Mastro (Mastro & Associates) 559-261-4300 559-917-5632 joemcpa@sbcglobal.net 

Jack Joyce (Bay Actuarial Consultants) 925-377-5269 902-286-0685 jjoyce@bayactuarial.com 

Sam Black (Charles Schwab & Co) 415-945-6464 415-994-7941 sam.black@schwab.com 

Don Jesberg (KCM Investments) 415-461-7788 
 

djesberg@kcmadvisors.com 

 

 
 

mailto:susan_blankenburg@faira.org
mailto:alex_banks@faira.org
mailto:msims@bonitafd.org
mailto:ewalder@southplacerfire.org
mailto:cbrainard@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:sdraper@lyon-county.org
mailto:mark.a.johnson@fire.ca.gov
mailto:bboggeln@alpinefire.org
mailto:rpearce@tiburonfire.org
mailto:mpomi@kentfieldfire.org
mailto:rhondahaynes@ocfa.org
mailto:howard.wood@vfpd.net
mailto:dbacigalupi@lozanosmith.com
mailto:cpa4flight@aol.com
mailto:joemcpa@sbcglobal.net
mailto:jjoyce@bayactuarial.com
mailto:sam.black@schwab.com
mailto:djesberg@kcmadvisors.com


March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 3 of 79 

FAIRA MEETING CALENDAR 
2021 

 

 
*All dates and meeting venues are subject to change as directed by the President of the Board

MEETING DATES TIME MEETING LOCATION 

Monday, March 15, 2021 
 

10:00 a.m. Board and Executive Meeting Telephonic Meeting Via WebEx 

Monday, June 14, 2021 
 

10:30 a.m. Board and Executive Meeting Telephonic Meeting Via WebEx 

Monday, September 13, 2021 
 

10:30 a.m. Annual Board and Executive Meeting TBD 

Monday, December 13, 2021 
AS CALLED ON BY THE BOARD 

PRESIDENT 

10:30 a.m. Board and Executive Meeting TBD 



March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 4 of 79 

President  Director  Director 
Criss Brainard  Chief Scott Draper  Chief Richard Pearce 
San Miguel Consolidated FPD  Mason Valley FPD  Tiburon FPD 
Spring Valley, CA  Yerington, NV  Tiburon, CA 
     
     
Vice President  Director  Director 
Chief Don Butz  Chief Mike Sims  Chief Howard Wood 
Lakeside FPD  Bonita-Sunnyside FPD  Vacaville FPD 
Lakeside, CA  San Diego, CA  Vacaville, CA 
     
     
Treasurer  Director  Director 
Chief Mark Pomi  Chief Sean Bailey  Chief Reno DiTullio Jr 
Kentfield, FPD  Northstar CSD  Aromas Tri-County FPD 
Kentfield, CA  Truckee, CA  Monterey, CA 
     
     
Secretary  Director  Director 
Chief Mark A. Johnson  Ken Musso  Chief Brian Boggeln 
Fresno FPD  South Placer FPD  Alpine FPD 
Sanger, CA  Granite Bay, CA  Alpine, CA 
     
     
Elected Executive Board Member     
Rhonda Haynes     
Orange County FA     
Irvine, CA     
     
     
     
 
      
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     



March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 5 of 79 

 

1 Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum 
Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum 



March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 6 of 79 

2 Confirmation of Agenda 
NOTICE AGENDA OF THE FIRE AGENCIES MEETING OF THE BOARD 

March 15, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. 
 

To be posted by all Districts in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government 
Code Section 54950, et seq. 

 
This meeting will be conducted in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights 

of the parties or public appearing before the FAIRA Board of Directors. The following can be 
utilized by the public who wish to attend and/or address the FAIRA Board: WebEx 981 078 398  

 
Telephonic Attendance 

WebEx Meeting Number: 981 078 398 

AGENDA 

1 Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum--------------------------------------------------------- 5 

2 Confirmation of Agenda ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 6 
Consideration and Possible Action --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 8 

3 Public Comment------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 9 
Oral Communications to the Board, opportunity for public comment with respect to matters not on the 
Agenda ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 9 
This portion of the Agenda may be utilized by any person to address the Board of Directors’ on any matter 
within the jurisdiction of FAIRA not listed on the agenda. Depending on the subject matter, per the Ralph M. 
Brown Act, the Board may not be able to respond at this time or until the specific item is placed on the 
Agenda for a future meeting. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes ----------------------------------------------- 9 

Consideration and Possible Action ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 15 

4 General Manager Report ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 16 

4.1 Implementation of Experience Modifications ------------------------------------------------------- 16 
Consideration and Possible Action ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 16 

4.2 Actuarial Study from Bay Actuarial ------------------------------------------------------------------- 17 
Consideration and Possible Action ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 17 

4.3 Professional Property Appraisals --------------------------------------------------------------------- 18 
Consideration and Possible Action ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 18 

4.4 CAJPA Data Analysis Report ---------------------------------------------------------------------------- 19 
Receive and File------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 19 

4.5 FAIRA Webinars ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 20 
Receive and File------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 20 

4.6 FDAC Agreement------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 21 
Consideration and Possible Action ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 21 

4.7 Distribution of 10 Year Loss Reports ----------------------------------------------------------------- 27 
Receive and File------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 27 

4.8 FAIRA Loss Experience ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 34 



March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 7 of 79 

Receive and File------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 34 
4.9 FAIRA Board of Directors ------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 35 

Receive and File------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 35 

4.10 Annual Board and Executive Meeting----------------------------------------------------------------- 36 
Consideration and Possible Action ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 36 

5 Brokerage Report ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 37 

5.1 Gallagher Service Team --------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 37 
Receive and File------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 37 

5.2 Stewardship Report -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 38 
Receive and File------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 38 

5.3 Renewal Status-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 39 
Consideration and Possible Action ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 39 

6 Financial Update -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 40 

6.1 Audited Financial Statement Year Ending June 30, 2020 and 2019 ----------------------------- 40 
Consideration and Possible Action ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 40 

6.2 Deductible Update---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 66 
Receive and File------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 66 

6.3 Review of KCM Investments ---------------------------------------------------------------------------- 67 
Receive and File------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 67 

7 Loss Control Consultant------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 68 

7.1 Fleet Safety Analysis ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 68 
Receive and File------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 68 

7.2 Drive to Survive Online Course ------------------------------------------------------------------------ 69 
Consideration and Possible Action ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 69 

7.3 Core360 Loss Control Platform Update -------------------------------------------------------------- 71 
Receive and File------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 71 

8 Closed Session Conference with Legal Counsel------------------------------------------------------- 72 
The Board may enter into Closed session at this time. -------------------------------------------------------------------- 72 

8.1 Potential Litigation. [Government Code § 54956.9(b)] -------------------------------------------- 72 

8.2 Pending Litigation. [Government Code § 54956.9(a)] --------------------------------------------- 72 

8.3 FAIRA Claims and Loss Reports ------------------------------------------------------------------------ 72 
The above matters described on the agenda may be held in closed session as a conference with counsel 
under the provisions of Government Code § 54956.9 (a) and (b). If closed sessions are held, a report of 
actions subject to disclosure will be made by the Authority’s Counsel upon return to open session 
respectively. -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 72 

9 Other Business ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 72 
Other business as necessary so that FAIRA can perform its functions as authorized by law and which has 
arisen within seventy-two (72) hours prior to the initiation of this meeting and may be considered under 
the Brown Act. ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 72 

10 Presidents Report (as needed) ------------------------------------------------------------------------ 73 

11 Correspondence and Informational Items --------------------------------------------------------- 74 

12 Adjournment ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 78 
I certify that this Authority Agenda was posted and sent by First Class United States Mail to all Members of 
the Authority 72 hours before the noted meeting. ------------------------------------------------------------------------- 78 



March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 8 of 79 

 
 

 
 
 
________________________________  Date: March 9, 2021 
Susan Blankenburg 
General Manager 
 

FAIRA, in complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), requests individuals who require 
specific accommodations to access, attend or participate in the Board Meeting, due to disability, to please 
contact the General Manager at 415-536-4005 at least two (2) business days prior to the scheduled 
meeting to ensure that the Authority may assist you. Others with questions concerning this Agenda please 
contact the General Manager at 415-536-4005. 
 

Consideration and Possible Action 

 
 

 
 
  

 



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 9 of 79 

3 Public Comment 
Oral Communications to the Board, opportunity for public comment with respect to matters not on the 
Agenda 
 

This portion of the Agenda may be utilized by any person to address the Board of Directors’ on any 
matter within the jurisdiction of FAIRA not listed on the agenda. Depending on the subject matter, per 
the Ralph M. Brown Act, the Board may not be able to respond at this time or until the specific item is 
placed on the Agenda for a future meeting. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 10 of 79 

 
 Approval of the Minutes of the September 14, 2020 Board and Executive Board Meeting 

FAIRA Board and Executive Board Meeting Minutes – September 14, 2020 

 

 
FIRE AGENCIES INSURANCE RISK AUTHORITY MINUTES OF THE BOARD AND  

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 

September 14, 2020 at 10:30 a.m. 
 

To be posted by all Districts in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, California  
Government Code Section 54950, et seq. 

Telephonic Meeting held on WebEx 
PRESENT: Brian Boggeln (Alpine FPD); Mark Pomi (Kentfield FPD); Criss Brainard (San 
Miguel Consolidated FPD); Sean Bailey (Northstar CSD); Eric Walder (South Placer FPD); 
Don Butz (Lakeside FPD); Scott Draper (Mason Valley FPD); Mike Sims (Bonita-Sunnyside 
FPD);  
Absent: David Fulcher (Aromas Tri-County FPD) President Jonathan Wilby (Orange County 
FA); Howard Wood (Vacaville FPD); Richard Pearce (Tiburon FPD) Mark Johnson (Fresno 
FPD).  
Staff: Susan Blankenburg (FAIRA General Manager); Zack Phillips (Arthur J. Gallagher); Ryan 
Jacques (Arthur J. Gallagher); Alex Banks (FAIRA Analyst); Eric Kikalo (Arthur J. Gallagher); 
Jim Smith (FAIRA); Andrew Diesel (Arthur J. Gallagher).  
Guests: Lawrence Shaw (AAAtraq); Dale Bacigalupi (FAIRA General Counsel). 

ITEM 1 - CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 

Vice President Criss Brainard called the meeting to order at 10:41 am and confirmed we have 
a quorum. 
Item 2 – Confirmation of Agenda 
A motion was made to approve the Agenda.   

M/S/P Walder/Butz  
Motion passed via Roll Call. Approvals by: Sean Bailey, Northstar; Mike Sims, Bonita-
Sunnyside; Mark Pomi, Kentfield; Eric Walder, South Placer; Criss Brainard, San Miguel; Brian 
Boggeln, Alpine; Scott Draper, Mason Valley; Don Butz, Lakeside. 
ITEM 3 - ORAL COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD, OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC 
COMMENT WITH RESPECT TO MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

There was no public comment.  



FAIRA Board and Executive Board Meeting Minutes – September 14, 2020 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 11 of 79 

ITEM 4 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE June 15, 2020 BOARD MEETING OF THE FAIRA 
BOARD AND EXECUTIVE BOARD. 
 
A motion was made to approve the minutes of the June 15, 2020 FAIRA Board and Executive 
Meeting, as submitted.  

M/S/P Sims/Bailey  
Motion passed via Roll Call. Approvals by: Sean Bailey, Northstar; Mike Sims, Bonita-
Sunnyside; Mark Pomi, Kentfield; Eric Walder, South Placer; Criss Brainard, San Miguel; Brian 
Boggeln, Alpine; Scott Draper, Mason Valley; Don Butz, Lakeside.  
Item 5 – AAAtraq Website Compliance for Visually Impaired  

Susan Blankenburg introduced Lawrence Shaw who gave a presentation on Gallagher partner 
AAAtraq – an organization that ensures entities’ websites are compliant for the visually and 
auditory impaired. Mr. Shaw gave his background which includes 17 years in website 
compliance. With the ongoing COVID pandemic, many entities are pushing to an online 
platform, which many law firms and individuals are using to their advantage to find websites 
that are non-compliant with ADA regulations. Mr. Shaw gave examples of some ADA cases 
and gave some potential costs that can be associated with a lawsuit related to non-compliance 
with ADA. A test was run and it determined that roughly 94% of websites worldwide are non-
compliant, with 68% at “high risk.” If purchased, each Member would have access to see their 
compliance. It is an automated report that generates independent audits of your website, and 
lets you know what needs to be done in order to become compliant. An additional perk is that if 
there is any litigation against your District, AAAtraq has a wide range of law firms on standby 
that are ready to act quickly with your District. Mr. Shaw finished with a note stating that with 
one lawsuit equivalent to a 50-year AAAtraq subscription, it is an unnecessary risk to not sign 
up. Ms. Blankenburg asked the Board if they are aware of the ADA compliance. Mike Sims 
noted this is very similar to the California Voter Rights and that the same type of lawyers are 
targeting ADA. He thinks it is a good idea to address it before it is a problem and asked Mr. 
Shaw if there is a discount for a full Membership registration. Mr. Shaw confirmed there is a 
discount – about 70%. The total cost that FAIRA is promised for life is $28,500 a year. He 
added that many cases are being dropped when the defendant can prove that they have been 
taking necessary steps to gain compliance. Ms. Blankenburg advised that if we cannot get the 
Board to agree for the full Membership to register, individual Districts can sign up for $500 a 
year. Eric Walder added that there is a lot of risk and it is the first presentation that he has 
seen and needs to read more on it before voicing his opinion. He asked if anyone has looked 
into this and Don Butz said they have. He thought his website was compliant and with a quick 
AAAtraq review, it showed they were not. Director Butz is in favor of engaging and believes 
that it is their responsibility to reduce the liability.  
A motion was made to give FAIRA staff and Board President the authority to finalize the 
details of the proposal with legal review and execute all documents to engage AAAtraq.  

M/S/P Butz/Sims 
  



FAIRA Board and Executive Board Meeting Minutes – September 14, 2020 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 12 of 79 

Motion passed via Roll Call. Approvals by: Sean Bailey, Northstar; Mike Sims, Bonita-
Sunnyside; Mark Pomi, Kentfield; Eric Walder, South Placer; Criss Brainard, San Miguel; Brian 
Boggeln, Alpine; Scott Draper, Mason Valley; Don Butz, Lakeside.  
Item 6.1 – Deductible Update  
Zack Phillips said it is a similar story in that we are benefiting from AWAC being slow with 
invoicing FAIRA for the deductibles. Though the process has been slow, we are getting AWAC 
to submit supporting documentation for the deductibles around faster.  

No action required.  
Item 6.2 – Investment Update as of 8/31/20  

Mr. Phillips stated that we exceeded interest income budget despite the big dip in March. This 
year we are looking good with being right on budget.  

No action required.  
Item 7.1 – Update on FAIRA Board Positions  

Ms. Blankenburg noted that with President Jonathan Wilby’s departure, FAIRA needs to 
replace him as the Board President. Orange County Fire Authority has a permanent seat as 
they are the largest Member in FAIRA. They have a resolution on file that notes whoever is the 
Risk Manager is appointed to the FAIRA Board. That position is filled by Ronda Haynes 
effective immediately. Typically, the Vice President steps into the President role. Ms. 
Blankenburg advised she spoke to Director Brainard and he was more than happy to assume 
the role. Ms. Blankenburg asked if there were any additional nominations and there were none. 
After the first motion passed, President Brainard was advised by Director Butz that he was 
interested in the role of Vice President. President Brainard asked if there were any other 
nominations and there were none. After the motion passed, President Brainard asked the 
Board that if anyone had an interested in serving as the Member At Large position, previously 
held by Director Butz, to contact him offline. Subsequent to the Board meeting, President 
Brainard advised that Director Walder was interested in the position and was appointed per the 
authority of our new Board President.  
A motion was made to appoint Criss Brainard as the President.  

M/S/P Walder/Pomi  
Motion passed via Roll Call. Approvals by: Sean Bailey, Northstar; Mike Sims, Bonita-
Sunnyside; Mark Pomi, Kentfield; Eric Walder, South Placer; Criss Brainard, San Miguel; Brian 
Boggeln, Alpine; Scott Draper, Mason Valley; Don Butz, Lakeside.  
A motion was made to appoint Don Butz as the Vice President.  

M/S/P Sims/Boggeln 
  



FAIRA Board and Executive Board Meeting Minutes – September 14, 2020 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 13 of 79 

Motion passed via Roll Call. Approvals by: Sean Bailey, Northstar; Mike Sims, Bonita-
Sunnyside; Mark Pomi, Kentfield; Eric Walder, South Placer; Criss Brainard, San Miguel; Brian 
Boggeln, Alpine; Scott Draper, Mason Valley; Don Butz, Lakeside.  
Item 7.2 – Brokerage: Scope of Services  
President Brainard advised the Board that the Brokerage team executed an updated scope of 
services. All additions were presented in red to simplify what has been added since the last 
update.  
A motion was made to approve the Brokerage Scope of Services.  

M/S/P Butz/Walder  
Motion passed via Roll Call. Approvals by: Sean Bailey, Northstar; Mike Sims, Bonita-
Sunnyside; Mark Pomi, Kentfield; Eric Walder, South Placer; Criss Brainard, San Miguel; Brian 
Boggeln, Alpine; Scott Draper, Mason Valley; Don Butz, Lakeside.  
Item 7.3 – General Manager: Scope of Services  

Ms. Blankenburg noted that similar to the Brokerage scope of services, the FAIRA staff 
executed an updated scope of services, with this one too having changes in red. There is no 
increase in the fee this year, saving about $7,000. There is a cap of a 2-4% increase year to 
year. In 2018, FAIRA staff picked up the financial services for an additional $4,000 a year. 
Considering the amount of additional work picked up by Mr. Phillips, the $4,000 is a bargain.  
A motion was made to approve the General Manager Scope of Services.  

M/S/P Pomi/Bailey  
Motion passed via Roll Call. Approvals by: Sean Bailey, Northstar; Mike Sims, Bonita-
Sunnyside; Mark Pomi, Kentfield; Eric Walder, South Placer; Criss Brainard, San Miguel; Brian 
Boggeln, Alpine; Scott Draper, Mason Valley; Don Butz, Lakeside.  
Item 7.4 – John Paget – Request for Increase in Fee  
John Paget, FAIRA’s accountant, has held his fee of $1,350 flat for the last six years. Since 
that time, his work and responsibilities has been increased, mostly with following renewal 
payments and deductible reimbursements. He is asking for a fee increase of $150, bringing the 
monthly fee to $1,500. On page 5 of the agreement, there is a reference to workers 
compensation and auto liability coverage requirements. He has no employees and does not do 
any driving on behalf of FAIRA. Dale Bacigalupi, FAIRA’s General Counsel, advised these 
requirements are not necessary and we can proceed with just the errors and omissions and 
general liability, which Mr. Paget has provided. President Brainard asked when the agreement 
would be effective and Mr. Bacigalupi advised it would be effective September 1, 2020. 

 

  



FAIRA Board and Executive Board Meeting Minutes – September 14, 2020 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 14 of 79 

A motion was made to approve the fee increase with the amendment of the insurance 
requirements.  
M/S/P Butz/Sims  
Motion passed via Roll Call. Approvals by: Sean Bailey, Northstar; Mike Sims, Bonita-
Sunnyside; Mark Pomi, Kentfield; Eric Walder, South Placer; Criss Brainard, San Miguel; Brian 
Boggeln, Alpine; Scott Draper, Mason Valley; Don Butz, Lakeside.  
Item 8.1 – Loss Control Fleet Safety Analysis  

Ms. Blankenburg advised the Board of longtime Loss Control Consultant Marco Guardi’s 
departure from Gallagher. Jim Smith is the new day-to-day Consultant and Andrew Diesel will 
be running with the Fleet Safety Analysis. Mr. Diesel noted he had previously held a meeting 
with Mr. Wilby and Mr. Guardi to discuss FAIRA as a whole. He presented FAIRA offerings 
from Gallagher which include: Risk Evaluation & Analysis, Business Intervention Strategy, and 
Implementation. The Fleet Safety Analysis consists of this three prong approach. Mr. Smith 
presented an overview of the project. They have selected the top three high loss Districts from 
small Districts (0-10 vehicles), medium Districts (11-20 vehicles) and large Districts (21+ 
vehicles). The way the top three are decided is by claims per 100 calls. Under the small District 
category, the top three that will be examined are Alta FPD, Chalfant Valley FD CSD, and Lee 
Vining FPD. The medium sized Districts that will be examined will be South Coast FPD, 
Montezuma FPD, and Smith Valley FPD. The large group consists of Vacaville FPD, Montecito 
FPD, and San Ramon Valley FPD.  

Among trends that were found in FAIRA Auto Losses, the top five were collisions with 
stationary objects, collisions with parked cars, backing accidents, intersection collisions, and 
rear end collisions. Mr. Diesel advised that they are not here to tell you how to drive a fire 
truck, but their goal is conversational interaction to implement safe driving habits and protocol 
to ensure fewer claims. Ms. Blankenburg asked when we will see some information back and 
Mr. Diesel advised that once we get approvals from the Districts, it can be completed in a few 
months. They see the project starting late this year or early 2021. She then asked the Board 
who they should be contacting and they advised it should go through the Fire Chief. She asked 
if the Chiefs will be ready for these meetings and Director Walder advised that with the heavy 
fire season expected to go through November, it may be hard to get in contact with Chiefs or 
get them to commit time to this. He thinks maybe December would be a better time to start.  

No action required.  
Item 8.2 – Drive to Survive Courses  

Alex Banks noted that at the June meeting, it was determined that the Drive to Survive courses 
were not going to happen in July as they typically do. Ms. Blankenburg noted that at the June 
meeting, we would secure dates for November. Dates were secured, though Director Butz 
recommended that we push it to spring 2021. President Brainard agreed and Ms. Blankenburg 
advised we will secure dates for March.  
No action required.  
  



FAIRA Board and Executive Board Meeting Minutes – September 14, 2020 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 15 of 79 

Item 8.3 – Update Regarding Districts’ Compliance with AB1825  

Mr. Banks said that at the last September meeting, we had a total of 32 Districts that were non-
compliant with the state mandated AB1825 law. As of October, that is now down to 18. This is 
in part to the Gallagher Core360 Loss Control marketing efforts Mr. Banks has pushed on 
Districts to ensure they are compliant. Director Butz asked if it would make sense to send a 
letter to the non-compliant Districts to remind them about their non-compliance. Ms. 
Blankenburg said we can send out a letter reminding them, with another note on Gallagher’s 
Core360 Loss Control Portal. Scott Draper asked if this applies to the Nevada Districts and Mr. 
Banks said it does not. Ms. Blankenburg asked Eric Kikalo and Mr. Banks to put together a 
letter for the non-complaint Districts.  

No action required.  
Item 9.1 – Potential Litigation. [Government Code 54956.9(b)]  
Item 9.2 – Potential Litigation. [Government Code 54956.9(a)]  

Item 9.3 – FAIRA Claims and Loss Report  

No action required.  
Item 10 – Other Business  
No other business.  
Item 11 – Correspondence and Informational Items  

Ms. Blankenburg presented a letter that was sent to Sean Grinnell, the Secretary/Treasurer at 
Sonoma County FDA, who asks for a quarterly FAIRA activity update.  

No action required.  
Item 12 – Adjournment  

The meeting was adjourned at 12:18 p.m.  
A motion was made to adjourn the meeting.  

M/S/P Sims/Butz 

Consideration and Possible Action



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 16 of 79 

4 General Manager Report 

4.1 Implementation of Experience Modifications 
 

Back in 2008 the Board was presented with a report for consideration in adopting Experience 
Modifications. This was while the pool rates were very low and the Board decided against implementing 
Ex Mods.   

In 2020 staff suggested that consideration be given to review Experience Modifications as rates in the 
marketplace escalate and it may be the right time to acknowledge those with favorable and unfavorable 
experience, by use of a slight credit or debit.  

Experience Modification reports with four options were created by Faisal Alabsy, CRIS and Analytics 
Leader of Gallagher’s National Risk Solutions.  The reports were based on a 10 year loss period and 
the modification factors were limited to .90 to 1.15. The four options are as follows:  

(1) Losses capped at $50,000 with 25% loss rating and 75% exposure rating 
(2) Losses capped at $50,000 with 50% loss rating and 50% exposure rating 
(3) Losses capped at $100,000 with 25% loss rating and 75% exposure rating 
(4) Losses capped at $100,000 with 50% loss rating and 50% exposure rating 

Staff has worked with Faisal to summarize the impact of four options in the table below and believes 
that it is in the pools best interest to adopt initial experience modifications and recommend starting with 
option (1) that has the smallest impact for 2021-22. The factors are to be updated and reviewed 
annually with the goal of stair stepping to the Board’s ultimate goal, whether that be option (2), (3) or 
(4), or a combination of higher caps on losses and/or heavier loss rating.  

  

Member Characteristics Experience Modification Options 

Example 
Member 

Exposure 
Rating 

Loss 
Ratio 

(1) $50K @ 
25%  

(2) $50K 
@ 50% 

(3) $100K 
@ 25% 

(4) $100K 
@ 50% 

A Top 10 Top 10 1.06 1.11 1.12 1.15 

B Top 30 Top 10 1.00 1.00 1.03 1.06 

C Top 10 Top 30 1.04 1.08 1.04 1.09 

D Top 30 Top 30 1.00 .99 .98 .96 

E Top 30 Bottom 10 .96 .91 .95 .90 

F Bottom 20 Nil .95 .90 .95 .90 

 

Consideration and Possible Action 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 17 of 79 

4.2 Actuarial Study from Bay Actuarial 
 

We received our updated Actuarial Study from Jack Joyce of Bay Actuarial Consultants. 
 
The Study provides projected loss estimates using a 75% Probability Level for losses within our 
$100,000 Deductible, up to the $750,000 Annual Aggregate. Staff requested optional Deductibles 
ranging from $50,000 to $1,000,000 and Annual Aggregates from $750,000 to $1,500,000.  
 
Since the 2018 study, the blended Liability rate is up 20%, Property is up 33% due to a final payment 
on an open Fire claim from 2016 and two larger Automobile Physical Damage losses pushing the rate 
up 40%. (These increases are relative to only the funding that is collected for FAIRA’s Deductible.) 
 
The Annual Aggregate at $750,000 has brought value, as uncapped losses are expected to be 
$1,238,000. Carrier’s typically price Aggregates at an attachment point that they do not expect claims 
will rise to. 
 
This report is based on the membership and loss data as of 12/31/20. 
 

Consideration and Possible Action 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 18 of 79 

4.3 Professional Property Appraisals 
 

In a hardening insurance market, premium increases are not uncommon and it is beneficial to FAIRA 
Members as well as the markets to have currently valued property appraisals. The last appraisals were 
done by Specialty Property Appraisals starting in late 2016 and finishing in early 2017. Best practices 
are to have appraisals done every 5 years.  
 
This year FAIRA staff has reached out to Duff & Phelps along with CBIZ to obtain quotes. The Options 
include all buildings $10,000+ (266 were under) with options for consideration being excess of $50,000 
and $100,000 as a means to contain cost.  
 
A summary of the cost can be found below.   
 
Duff & Phelps - $140 per building 
 
CBIZ -   $138 per building 
 

Appraiser > $10,000 (633 buildings) >$50,000 (492 buildings) >$100,000  (451 buildings) 

Duff & Phelps  $                     88,620  
 $                                      

68,880  
 $                                              

63,140  

CBIZ  $                     87,354  
 $                                      

67,896  
 $                                              

62,238  
 
Regardless of the option selected, the scope of the project will take 3+ months.  
 
 

Consideration and Possible Action 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 19 of 79 

4.4 CAJPA Data Analysis Report 
 

 
We were advised by Julie Theirl, who is heading the Tort Liability Study project, that it is due to be 
presented to the CAJPA Board at the end of March and we will be advised of the outcome and next 
steps. 

Receive and File 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 20 of 79 

4.5 FAIRA Webinars 
 

 
The following three (3) FREE webinars have been scheduled over the next couple of months that are 
available to all FAIRA Members.  
 

1. Morin Jacob, Managing Partner at Liebert Cassidy Whitmore, will be giving a presentation on 
Diversity, Equality and Inclusion (DEI). The WebEx will be after this Board Meeting starting at 
12:30PM PST and will be one hour in length. 
  

2. Peter Flanderka of Law Office of Peter C. Flanderka will be hosting a webinar on Wednesday, 
April 14, 2021 at 10AM PST to discuss Hiring, Firing and (Almost) Everything In Between. 
There will be a 45 minute presentation followed by a Q&A open to all attendees. 
 

3. Chris Daly, owner and instructor of Drive to Survive, is hosting a one hour webinar on 
Monday, March 29, 2021 at 10AM PST. Drive to Survive: Preventing Rollovers, is designed 
specifically for Fire District’s and covers how to prevent rollovers and improve your 
Department’s driving safety skills.  

 

Receive and File 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 21 of 79 

4.6 FDAC Agreement 
 

 
The FDAC agreement is due to expire on 6/30/2021. If the Board would like to extend the current 
contract for a 12 month term, staff will forward the following agreement to their Executive Director at the 
current $15,000 fee.  
 

Consideration and Possible Action 

 
 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 22 of 79 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN FIRE AGENCIES INSURANCE RISK 

AUTHORITY AND FIRE DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION  
OF CALIFORNIA 

 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of July 1, 2021, by and between the 

Fire Agencies Insurance Risk Authority, a joint powers authority, organized and existing under the 

provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Government Code 6500, et. seq.) (“FAIRA”) and Fire 

Districts Association of California, a California non-profit public benefit corporation (“FDAC”) with 

respect to terms and conditions of certain services and consideration to be exchanged between FAIRA 

and FDAC. 

WHEREAS, FAIRA desires FDAC to promote the insurance and self-insurance services of FAIRA 

with respect to existing and prospective members of the FDAC; and, 

WHEREAS, FDAC desires FAIRA to promote the membership in FDAC with local agency members 

of FAIRA who are not currently members of FDAC; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, the 

parties agree as follows: 

1. Term 

1.1 The parties ratify the obligations as set forth hereinafter in the Agreement from and after 

July 1, 2021, the Agreement effective date, through June 30, 2022. The parties agree to review the 

terms of the Agreement from time-to-time for possible modification and if modification is sought then 

give written notice of such proposed modification consistent with Section 4 of this Agreement, at least 

thirty (30) days prior to July 1 of any calendar year that the Agreement is in effect. 

1.2 Termination 

 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, either party may terminate this agreement with 

or without cause by giving the other party 30 days written notice. In such event, any unearned or unpaid 

portion of the annual fee shall be prorated to the date of termination and paid or refunded, as the case 

may be. 



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 23 of 79 

2.  Obligations of FAIRA 

 2.1 FAIRA shall, on or before January 15 of each calendar year in which this Agreement is 

in effect, pay to FDAC the amount of $15,000 as an annual fee as payment for FDAC actions described 

below, after being invoiced for that amount by FDAC. 

 2.2 FAIRA shall promote and encourage membership in the FDAC to prospective members 

of FAIRA and to current members of FAIRA not currently members of FDAC. 

3. Obligations of FDAC 

 3.1 FDAC shall allow the use, name and logo of the FDAC to FAIRA. 

 3.2 FDAC shall invoice FAIRA a fee as described in Section 2.1 of this Agreement on or 

after January 1 of each calendar year.  

3.3 FDAC shall exclusively promote and encourage membership in FAIRA to all new and 

prospective members of FDAC and to all current members of FDAC not currently members of FAIRA. 

3.4 FDAC shall maintain as current its membership data base and share the same with 

FAIRA for promotional services and shall maintain a link to the web site for FAIRA from the FDAC web 

site. 

 3.5 FDAC shall provide FAIRA a vendor booth at no cost at the annual conference of FDAC 

and other FDAC sponsored programs where vendor booths are provided and a half page box 

advertisement in the FDAC Report or similar newsletter published by the FDAC. 

 3.6 FDAC shall provide to FAIRA legislative advocacy and tracking through FDAC legislative 

committees.  

3.7 It shall be the policy of the FDAC Board of Directors that FAIRA’s Insurance Program 

shall be the exclusive Liability; Auto Liability, Property and Auto Physical Damage insurance program to 

receive the sponsorship, services and obligations described hereinabove in Sections 3.1 through 3.6 of 

this Agreement.  

3.8 In order to fully carry out the FDAC duties to exclusively support and promote 

FAIRA and FAIRA’s insurance programs, as set forth in sections 3.3 and 3.7, FDAC further agrees 



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 24 of 79 

that neither the FDAC Board, nor any of its employees or staff, shall participate in, finance, 

endorse, support, or encourage any effort that would inhibit or interfere with its duty of exclusive 

support of FAIRA. 

4. Notices 

 4.1 Any notices relating to this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed 

sufficiently given and served for all purposes when delivered personally or by generally recognized 

overnight courier service, or three (3) business days after deposit in the United States Mail, certified or 

registered, return receipt requested with postage prepaid addressed as follows: 

 
If to FAIRA: 

 

      General Manager 

      Fire Agencies Insurance Risk Authority 

      1255 Battery Street, Suite 450 

      San Francisco, CA 94111 

 

 

If to FDAC: 

 

      Executive Director 

      Fire Districts Association of California 

      700 R Street, Suite 200 

      Sacramento, CA  95811 

     

5. Indemnification 

 5.1 FAIRA agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless FDAC, its officers, agents and 

employees from any and all claims for losses accruing or resulting to any person or entity arising out of 

FAIRA’s breach of or its obligation hereunder or sole negligence in FAIRA’s performance of this 

Agreement. 



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 25 of 79 

 5.2 FDAC agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless FAIRA, its officers, agents and 

employees from any and all claims for losses accruing or resulting to any person or entity arising out of 

FDAC’s breach of or its obligation hereunder or sole negligence in FDAC’s performance of this 

Agreement. 

6. Entire Agreement.  The terms and conditions and covenants of this Agreement are intended by 

the parties as a final expression of their agreement with respect to such terms, conditions and 

covenants that are included in this Agreement and may not be contradicted by evidence by any prior or 

contemporaneous agreements. This Agreement specifically supersedes any prior written or oral 

agreements between the parties. 

7. Amendment.  This agreement may be amended from time-to-time only by the mutual written 

agreement of the parties, when preceded by the notice provisions of Section 1 of this Agreement. 

8 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, and 

the rights and obligations of the parties set forth shall be construed and enforced in accordance with 

applicable Federal Law and the laws of the State of California. 

9. Waiver.  Any waiver at any time by any party of its rights with respect to default or any other 

matter arising in connection with this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver with respect to any 

other default or matter. The exercise by a party of any remedy provided in the Agreement or at law shall 

not prevent the exercise by that party of any other remedy provided in this Agreement or at law. 

10. Severability.  If any terms, provisions, conditions and covenants of this Agreement shall be held 

invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected and thereby shall be 

valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

11. Neutral Interpretation.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be construed as to their fair 

meaning, and not for or against any party based on any attribution to such party as the source of the 

language in question. Headings used in this Agreement are for the convenience of reference only and 

shall not be used in construing this Agreement. 

12. Counterparts.  This Agreement is executed in two (2) duplicate originals, each of which shall be 

deemed an original, but each of which together shall constitute one in the same instrument. This 



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 26 of 79 

Agreement consists of four (4) pages, which constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the 

parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement with the intent to be 

bound thereby as of the date first written above, ratifying performance, which has occurred since the 

Agreement Effective Date.  

 

 

“FAIRA” 

      

     FIRE AGENCIES INSURANCE RISK AUTHORITY 

 

Dated:__________________By:      

    

 
_______________________________________ 

     Criss Brainard, President 

 

 

“FDAC” 

 

FIRE DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA 

  

Dated:                By:   

      

      

 

_______________________________________  

___________________, President 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 27 of 79 

4.7 Distribution of 10 Year Loss Reports 
 

 
 
Districts with a loss ratio of 30% or greater (33) received a packet containing an overview of their losses 
sorted by line of coverage and dollar amounts for the last 10 years, with the back-up loss detail on each 
claim. 
 
The Loss Ratios reflect the ground-up losses with no loss development or Incurrent But Not Reported 
(IBNR) factors applied.  
 

Receive and File 

 

 
  

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 28 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 29 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 30 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 31 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 32 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 33 of 79 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 34 of 79 

4.8 FAIRA Loss Experience 
 
 
FAIRA’s loss experience since 2016 is on the rise. This was a combination of multiple Employment 
Practice Liability claims, two fire station & apparatus fire losses, and one significant mudslide. 
Combined with social inflation and runaway jury awards the new reality is not a pretty picture. 
 
Carriers have begun imposing minimum deductibles where lines of coverage are deteriorating. EPLI 
and Law Enforcement deductible increases are the most commonly seen. We expect to receive 
pressure to increase our current Deductible. 
 
In 2018 the pool adopted a $100,000 Deductible with a $750,000 Annual Aggregate. The Aggregate 
being the maximum amount the pool would have to pay in any given year. For both years 2018/2019 
and 2019/2020 our Aggregate has been exhausted and all additional claims falling within those policy 
years will be paid by the carrier.  
 
FAIRA’s Loss Control Consultants are focusing on Automobile Losses through 6/30/2021. We will likely 
revisit Employment Practice Liability practices to provide protection against one of the greatest threats 
seen to California Public Entities today. 
 
 

Receive and File 

 
 

 
 
 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 35 of 79 

4.9 FAIRA Board of Directors 
At the September 2020 Board Meeting, the Board voted to elect Director Brainard as President, 
replacing President Jonathan Wilby, leaving a vacancy for Vice President that has since been filled by 
Chief Don Butz. Director Butz had served as the Elected Executive Board Member, upon the 
appointment of the Board President. That vacancy has recently been filled by the acceptance of 
Rhonda Haynes, Risk Manager from Orange County Fire Authority.  

Director Walder advised FAIRA Staff of his retirement effective March 8, 2021. South Placer FPD 
provided a formal resolution appointing Director Ken Musso to South Placer’s seat on the FAIRA Board.  

On January 26th, Theresa Volland, the Board Secretary at Aromas Tri-County FPD sent a letter to 
FAIRA General Management advising that Reno DiTullio Jr. will be assuming Director Fulcher’s 
position on the FAIRA Board. This is effective immediately. It is our understanding that Director Fulcher 
received a promotion and we wish him well.   

In April, staff will be sending out ballots to all FAIRA Members for the 2021 election. Four of the six 
seats will be up for election: Alpine, Lakeside, Bonita-Sunnyside and Aromas Tri-County.  
 

Receive and File 

 



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 36 of 79 

4.10 Annual Board and Executive Meeting 
 

 
We propose holding the Annual Board and Executive Meeting scheduled on June 14, 2021 in person at 
the Orange County Fire Authority Headquarters in Irvine, CA in one of their large training rooms. As in 
past years, the meeting will be followed by a dinner with the location to be determined.  
 

Consideration and Possible Action 

 
 

 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 37 of 79 

5 Brokerage Report 

5.1 Gallagher Service Team 
 

We are excited to have Natalie Bates join the Gallagher Team serving as the day-to-day Account 
Manager, the role previously held by Eric Kikalo.  

She has over 17 years of experience in the insurance industry, with 11 of those being in the Public 
Sector practice. Natalie has hit the ground running, joining Ryan Jacques and the rest of the Gallagher 
Team.  
 

Receive and File 

 
 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 38 of 79 

5.2 Stewardship Report 
 

FAIRA’s Broker has presented the July 1, 2021-2022 Strategic Review to the General Manager 
providing an overview of the accomplishments, an update on the State of the Marketplace through to 
the proposed Renewal Strategy for the 2021-2022 policy term.  
Ryan Jacques, Area Vice President of Gallagher will touch on the highlights of the report.  
 

Receive and File 

 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 39 of 79 

 

5.3 Renewal Status 
 

Gallagher has reported that they are currently in the marketplace negotiating FAIRA’s renewal. For the 
coming year many options are being explored that Natalie Bates, FAIRA’s Account Manager, will 
present the status to date. 
 

Consideration and Possible Action 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 40 of 79 

6 Financial Update 

6.1 Audited Financial Statement Year Ending June 30, 2020 and 2019 
As of 6/30/2020 FAIRA held $600K of cash which would have been paid out if AWAC’s deductible 
reimbursement requests hadn’t been delayed. These audited financials for the second consecutive year 
of insurance policy deductibles reflect improved communication and understanding by both FAIRA and 
the audit firm. 
 

Consideration and Possible Action 

 
 
 
 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 41 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 42 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 43 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 44 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 45 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 46 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 47 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 48 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 49 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 50 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 51 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 52 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 53 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 54 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 55 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 56 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 57 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 58 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 59 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 60 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 61 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 62 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 63 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 64 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 65 of 79 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 66 of 79 

6.2 Deductible Update 
FAIRA has fully reimbursed AWAC for the $750,000 aggregate deductibles for policy years 2018-19 
and 2019-20. Including trailing deductibles (i.e. $5,000 per claim occurrence), FAIRA has reimbursed 
AWAC $765K and $805K for those policy years. For policy year 2020-21 FAIRA has reimbursed 
AWAC $100K as of 1/31/2021. 
 
AWAC has paid out $140K and $350K in excess of deductibles for policy years 2018-19 and 2019-20, 
respectively. FAIRA members have been billed $187K, $211K and $46K policy years 2018-19, 2019-
20 and 2020-21, respectively. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Receive and File 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 67 of 79 

6.3 Review of KCM Investments 
The investment portfolio annualized rate of return is 2.2% for fiscal 2020-21 year-to-date.  

 
KCM’s Don Jesper noted the following in his January 2021 report:  

“Your portfolio is well positioned for 2021. You should stay fully invested as the rebound in the 
US economy begins to take hold. Bonds remain attractive securities for producing current 
income. 

“Bottom line, we remain optimistic, and will be ready to react to any of the unforeseen changes 
that occur in the investment climate. We anticipate some inflationary pressures and asset price 
appreciation (including housing). Interest rates are expected to stay extremely low through 
2023.” 

 

Receive and File 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 68 of 79 

7 Loss Control Consultant 
 

7.1 Fleet Safety Analysis 
Jim Smith with the Gallagher Loss Control team will provide an update on the status of the Fleet Gap 
Analysis. Recently, FAIRA staff sent out an email to each District that is a part of the analysis advising 
that our Gallagher Loss Control Team will be reaching out in the coming days to schedule time to meet. 
They will be conducting meetings with: 
 

- Carmel Highlands FPD 
- Shasta CSD 
- Lee Vining FPD 
- South Coast FPD 
- Montezuma FPD 
- Smith Valley FPD 
- Vacaville FPD 
- Montecito FPD 
- San Ramon Valley FPD 

Receive and File 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 69 of 79 

7.2 Drive to Survive Online Course 
 

Drive to Survive will not be available for in-person courses until the first quarter of 2022. Chris Daly, the 
owner and instructor of Drive to Survive, has created a new online course that is up and running! The 
training includes two parts that totals approximately 6 hours of instruction.  

A 25% discount has been afforded to FAIRA Members for a rate of $35 per seat for 101 or more seats, 
for $3,535, or we can wait until the following year for in person training.  
 

DRIVE TO SURVIVE One of the Nation’s Leading Fire & EMS Safety Seminars 
Each year nearly 25% of Firefighters and EMS fatalities are the result of motor vehicle crashes, yet few 
agencies train their members on safe operation of emergency apparatus and person vehicles. The 
“Drive to Survive” training program is designed to teach members that no matter how long they have 
been driving or how “good” they think they are, there are limits to safe operations.  

 

Consideration and Possible Action 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 70 of 79 

 
 

 
FAIRA – SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 

 
QUOTATION FOR ONLINE “DRIVE TO SURVIVE” TRAINING CLASS 

 
 
Cost of Each Annual License: $100.00 per student for (1) student 
     $75.00 per student for (1) – (100) students 

$35.00 per student for (101) – (1000) students 
     $25.00 per student for (1001) – (2000) students 
     $20.00 per student for (2001) – (3000) students 

     $15.00 per student for (3001) – (4000) students 
     $12.50 per student for (4001) – (5000) students 
     
    

The above listed quotation provides the cost for the online Drive to Survive training class.    Each license 
is valid for one student and will allow that student to register and complete the two-module online training 
program (equivalent to the 8-hour “Drive to Survive” training program.  Each license is valid for one year 
from the time of purchase.  Group viewing is prohibited.  Each license purchased is only valid for members 
of an agency that is a member or employee of FAIRA.  Please feel free to contact Drive to Survive with 
any questions regarding this quotation, or to schedule a date for the class, by calling 610-960-7248.  This 
quotation is valid for 90 days. 
 
 
 
AVERAGE COST OF A PROPERTY DAMAGE CRASH $16,000 AVERAGE COST OF A PERSONAL 

INJURY CRASH $75,000 
 
 

1205 Winthrop Circle, West Chester PA, 19380         610-960-7248 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 71 of 79 

 

7.3 Core360 Loss Control Platform Update 
 

We are excited to share that 27 FAIRA Districts, totaling 380 users, have registered for the Gallagher 
Core360 Loss Control Training Portal. As a reminder, Gallagher offers over 60 training modules from 
which each District can selected 10 a year FREE of charge, with unlimited seats.  

The majority of District’s have taken advantage of this platform to satisfy State mandated sexual 
harassment training such as AB1825 and SB 1343.  

If you would like help getting registered, please contact Alex Banks. 
 

Receive and File 

 
 
 

 
 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 72 of 79 

8 Closed Session Conference with Legal Counsel 
The Board may enter into Closed session at this time. 

8.1 Potential Litigation. [Government Code § 54956.9(b)] 
8.2 Pending Litigation. [Government Code § 54956.9(a)] 
8.3 FAIRA Claims and Loss Reports 
The above matters described on the agenda may be held in closed session as a conference with 
counsel under the provisions of Government Code § 54956.9 (a) and (b). If closed sessions are held, a 
report of actions subject to disclosure will be made by the Authority’s Counsel upon return to open 
session respectively. 
 
 

 

9 Other Business 
Other business as necessary so that FAIRA can perform its functions as authorized by law and which 
has arisen within seventy-two (72) hours prior to the initiation of this meeting and may be considered 
under the Brown Act. 

 
 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 73 of 79 

10 Presidents Report (as needed) 
 

This item has been posted in the event that the Board President has information to share with the 
Board.  No action can be taken.  

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 74 of 79 

 

11 Correspondence and Informational Items 
 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 75 of 79 

 
  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 76 of 79 

 
 



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 77 of 79 

 

 

  



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 78 of 79 

12 Adjournment 
I certify that this Authority Agenda was posted and sent by First Class United States Mail to all 
Members of the Authority 72 hours before the noted meeting. 

Sean Grinnell, the Secretary/Treasurer at Sonoma County FDA asked FAIRA staff for a FAIRA activity 
update. Below is the letter that was sent to him.  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

________________________________  Date: March 15, 2021 
Susan Blankenburg 
General Manager 

 



 

March 15, 2021 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 79 of 79 

 


	1 Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum
	2 Confirmation of Agenda
	Consideration and Possible Action

	3 Public Comment
	Oral Communications to the Board, opportunity for public comment with respect to matters not on the Agenda
	This portion of the Agenda may be utilized by any person to address the Board of Directors’ on any matter within the jurisdiction of FAIRA not listed on the agenda. Depending on the subject matter, per the Ralph M. Brown Act, the Board may not be able...
	Consideration and Possible Action

	4 General Manager Report
	4.1 Implementation of Experience Modifications
	Consideration and Possible Action

	4.2 Actuarial Study from Bay Actuarial
	Consideration and Possible Action

	4.3 Professional Property Appraisals
	Consideration and Possible Action

	4.4 CAJPA Data Analysis Report
	Receive and File

	4.5 FAIRA Webinars
	Receive and File

	4.6 FDAC Agreement
	Consideration and Possible Action

	4.7 Distribution of 10 Year Loss Reports
	Receive and File

	4.8 FAIRA Loss Experience
	Receive and File

	4.9 FAIRA Board of Directors
	Receive and File

	4.10  Annual Board and Executive Meeting
	Consideration and Possible Action


	5 Brokerage Report
	5.1 Gallagher Service Team
	Receive and File

	5.2 Stewardship Report
	Receive and File

	5.3 Renewal Status
	Consideration and Possible Action


	6 Financial Update
	6.1 Audited Financial Statement Year Ending June 30, 2020 and 2019
	Consideration and Possible Action

	6.2 Deductible Update
	Receive and File

	6.3 Review of KCM Investments
	Receive and File


	7 Loss Control Consultant
	7.1 Fleet Safety Analysis
	Receive and File

	7.2 Drive to Survive Online Course
	Consideration and Possible Action

	7.3 Core360 Loss Control Platform Update
	Receive and File


	8 Closed Session Conference with Legal Counsel
	The Board may enter into Closed session at this time.
	8.1 Potential Litigation. [Government Code § 54956.9(b)]
	8.2 Pending Litigation. [Government Code § 54956.9(a)]
	8.3 FAIRA Claims and Loss Reports
	The above matters described on the agenda may be held in closed session as a conference with counsel under the provisions of Government Code § 54956.9 (a) and (b). If closed sessions are held, a report of actions subject to disclosure will be made by ...


	9 Other Business
	Other business as necessary so that FAIRA can perform its functions as authorized by law and which has arisen within seventy-two (72) hours prior to the initiation of this meeting and may be considered under the Brown Act.

	10 Presidents Report (as needed)
	11 Correspondence and Informational Items
	12 Adjournment
	I certify that this Authority Agenda was posted and sent by First Class United States Mail to all Members of the Authority 72 hours before the noted meeting.


